Developing Population-based Services

Session One: The Planning Process & Community Assessment

March 12-13, 2002 
This session includes an overview of the five-step planning process for developing population-based health services.  The training program will provide information and skill-building activities on the community assessment process including the collection, review, interpretation and uses of community health data.  Prioritizing health problems and writing measurable objectives will also be covered. 

Objectives:

After participating in this session and completing the assigned activities, you will be able to:

1. Identify the five steps of the planning process for developing population-based services.


2. Describe the four components of a community health assessment. 

3. Review and analyze state-generated community data. 

4. Identify gaps in a community’s perceived needs, demographic, and health data. 


5. Develop a plan to assess community resources and assets and any other information to complete the community health assessment. 

6. Review criteria to prioritize health problems.

7. Practice writing measurable objectives. 

Agenda

Day 1, March 12, 2002

Registration







9:00-9:30

Climate Setting







9:30-10:15

Welcome and course overview

Group activity 

5-Step Planning Process 





10:15-10:45 

An overview

BREAK








10:45-11:00

Community Assessment






11:00-12:00

Mini presentation

Community definition reports

LUNCH








12:00-1:00

Friendsville, USA







1:00-2:30

Mini presentation

Review data and identify major issues

Report results

BREAK 








2:30-3:00

Perceptions and Opinions





3:00-4:00

An overview

Consider the concerns of Friendsville's community

Debrief








4:00-4:30

Group Resume

Instructions

You have 15 minutes for this activity.  

Each person at your table brings unique experiences and talents to this training.  


1. Organize a “group resume” for your table by finding out and recording the following information: 


a. Total number of undergraduate/graduate degrees.



b. Total number of years of professional experience.



c. One major accomplishment (personal or professional) of each group member.

2. “Print” your resume on the flipchart and be prepared to share your impressive resume with the larger group. 

Community Definition Worksheet

Defining your community is an ongoing process.  Start to define your community by answering the following questions.  As you gain experience working with your community, revisit these questions periodically and update your responses.  

What geographic area do you serve?

Describe some of the basic demographics you know about this community.  (Rural, urban, high percentage of middle-income, growing population of Hispanics, over half of the residents are employed outside the county, etc.)

In this geographic area, what are the major institutions?  (Education, health, recreation, business, religious, media, civic organizations, government, etc.)

Community Definition Worksheet, cont.

What are the patterns of social interaction in this area?  (Clubs, worksite, neighborhoods, etc.)

Who are the opinion leaders in this area?  (Individuals, organizations, community groups, key decision-makers, power structures, etc.)

Demographic and Health Data 
Types of data

Demographic Profile data

· economic status

· marital status

· education

· age and gender

· race/ethnic distribution

· socioeconomic factors

Health Status data
· leading causes of mortality 

· most prevalent diseases 

· leading causes of hospitalization

· preconceptional women and adolescents

· pregnant women and adolescents

· infants and preschool children

· school-age children and adolescents

· adults and older adults 

First find available LOCAL data

· Demographic - census and local service agencies

· Health - health department

· Nutritional - local agencies (public and private)


NOT EVERYTHING WILL BE AVAILABLE –

THERE WILL BE GAPS!
Demographic and Health Data

Measurement

Proportions

· For a count to be descriptive of a group, it must be a proportion (fraction) of the whole group

· i.e., the count must be divided by the number in the group

· The denominator must include the numerator

Prevalence Rate

· Describes the level of disease in a group at a certain point in time

· Measures EXISTING cases at that time

· Is an estimate of the risk for a disease in a population at any given point

· The prevalence rate gives no indication of when a person was first diagnosed

# of existing cases at a given point in time

P=     
----------------------------------------------------

Total population at a given point in time

Incidence Rate

· Describes the occurrence of NEW cases of a disease in a population during a time

· Technically the denominator = persons at risk

· e.g. incidence rate for a chronic disease, persons with that disease should be removed from the denominator

· Used with infectious diseases – more difficult to use with chronic diseases

· A measure of the risk of acquiring a disease

# of new cases at a given time

I=     
----------------------------------------------------

Population at risk during given time

Sources of Data on the World Wide Web

Georgia Department of Human Resources, Division of Public Health 


http://www.ph.dhr.state.ga.us/
see the next 6 pages

United States Census Bureau

http://www.cencus.gov
The Department of Health and Human Service site – the national Committee on Vital and Health Statistics


http://www.ncvhs.hhs.gov
National Center for Health Statistics of the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

www.cdc.gov/nchs

www.cdc.gov/nchs/about.otheract/nutrishn/nutrishn.htm
Office of Public Health and Sciences


http://ww.surgeongeneral.gov/ophs
The National Health Information Resource Center


http://www.nahdo.org/nhirc/indez.html
National Institutes of Health


http://www.nih.gov/health
National Institute of Child Health and Human Development


http://www.nichd.nih.gov/about/despr/despr.htm
Child Health USA


http://www.mchirc.net
Fedstats 


http://www.fedstats.gov
Administration on Aging


http://PR.aoa.dhhs.gov
Healthfinder


http://www.healthfinder.gov
U.S. Department of Agriculture

http://www.usda.gov/
Demographic Profile

Community Description
Source and Date of Data: ________________________________________________
Community Name: _____________________________________________________

Community Type:  ____ urban
____ rural
____suburban
____ other

Geographic size and description: _________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________

Total population:  ______________________________
Total Number of households:________
Average household size: ________

Economic Status 

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________


Unemployment rate:  Community_______
State _______

Per Capita Income:  Community________
State 
_______

Median Household Income: Community________
State 
_______

Residents employed in county: _________________

Primary Occupations: _________________________________

	Annual household income (amount)
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	<$10,000


	
	
	
	

	$10,000-$24,000


	
	
	
	

	$25,000-$49,000


	
	
	
	

	>$50,000


	
	
	
	


Adapted from PATCH: Guide for the Local Coordinator, 1993.

Marital Status

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________


	Marital Status
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Single


	
	
	
	

	Married


	
	
	
	

	Single male head of household
	
	
	
	

	Single female head of household
	
	
	
	

	Single parent family


	
	
	
	

	Working women with youngest child under 6 years old
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Education

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________

	Educational achievement

% of adults who complete: 
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Elementary school


	
	
	
	

	High school


	
	
	
	

	Technical school


	
	
	
	

	College – some


	
	
	
	

	Bachelor’s/Associate’s Degree


	
	
	
	


High school drop out rate:  Community_______
State ________


Age and Gender

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________


	Age Group

(in years)
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	<5


	
	
	
	

	5-17


	
	
	
	

	18-24


	
	
	
	

	25-44


	
	
	
	

	45-64


	
	
	
	

	64-& older 


	
	
	
	


Race/Ethnic Distribution

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________
	Population Distribution
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Black


	
	
	
	

	White


	
	
	
	

	Hispanic


	
	
	
	

	American Indian


	
	
	
	

	Asian & Pacific Islanders


	
	
	
	

	Other


	
	
	
	


Socioeconomic Factors
Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________
	Socioeconomic Measure
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Population below poverty level


	
	
	
	

	Children Living Below the Poverty Line


	
	
	
	

	Food Stamp recipients


	
	
	
	

	WIC Program participants


	
	
	
	

	WIC Program participants as a percentage of all those who are eligible


	
	
	
	

	Medicaid recipients


	
	
	
	

	Homeless persons


	
	
	
	

	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) participants


	
	
	
	

	Households on Supplemental Security Income (SSI) (elderly, bind, disabled)


	
	
	
	

	Legal immigrants


	
	
	
	

	Undocumented immigrants (estimate)


	
	
	
	

	Uninsured


	
	
	
	

	Underinsured


	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Health Status

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________
	Leading 5 Causes of Death

Male
	
	Leading 5 Causes of Death

Female

	
	No.
	
	
	No. 

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


	5 Most Prevalent Diseases
	
	5 Leading Causes of Hospitalization

	Community
	State
	
	Community
	State

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Preconceptional Women and Preconceptional Adolescents (ages 13-45 years) 

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________

	Health Indicators
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Pre-pregnancy BMI <19.8 (at risk of inadequate weight gain)


	
	
	
	

	Pre-pregnancy BMI >29 (at risk of excessive weight gain)


	
	
	
	

	Dietary adequacy: Ca intake


	
	
	
	

	Dietary adequacy: Fe intake


	
	
	
	

	Dietary adequacy: folate intake


	
	
	
	

	Substance abuse: smoking


	
	
	
	

	Substance abuse: drugs


	
	
	
	

	Substance abuse: alcohol


	
	
	
	

	Diabetes


	
	
	
	

	Eating Disorders


	
	
	
	

	Sexually Transmitted Diseases


	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Pregnant Women and Pregnant Adolescents  

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________

	Health Indicators
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Pregnancies


	
	
	
	

	Live births (rate)


	
	
	
	

	Mothers under 19 years of age


	
	
	
	

	Interconceptional period <16 months


	
	
	
	

	Inadequate weight gain


	
	
	
	

	Excessive weight gain


	
	
	
	

	Low hemoglobin or hematocrit


	
	
	
	

	Low nutrient intake


	
	
	
	

	Births complicated by diabetes


	
	
	
	

	Smoking 


	
	
	
	

	Drug Use


	
	
	
	

	Alcohol


	
	
	
	

	Entering prenatal care after first trimester or not at all


	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Infants (0-1 year) and Preschool Children (1-4 years)

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________

	Health Indicators
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Low birth weight (LBW)


	
	
	
	

	Very low birth weight (VLBW)


	
	
	
	

	Premature birth


	
	
	
	

	Low weight-for-height


	
	
	
	

	Low height-for-age


	
	
	
	

	High weight-for-height (obesity)


	
	
	
	

	Low hemoglobin or hematocrit 


	
	
	
	

	Low nutrient intake


	
	
	
	

	Breastfeeding at hospital discharge


	
	
	
	

	Breastfeeding at 6 months


	
	
	
	

	AIDS


	
	
	
	

	Infant Mortality Rate


	
	
	
	

	Dental caries


	
	
	
	

	Physical Activity


	
	
	
	

	Child abuse


	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


School-Age Children (5-11) and Adolescents (12-19) 

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________

	Health Indicators
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	High weight for height/obesity


	
	
	
	

	Low weight for height


	
	
	
	

	High blood cholesterol


	
	
	
	

	Low hemoglobin or hematocrit


	
	
	
	

	Fruit and vegetable daily intake

5 servings/day
	
	
	
	

	High percentage of calories from fat


	
	
	
	

	Dietary fiber intake


	
	
	
	

	Calcium intake

3-4 servings/day
	
	
	
	

	Poor dieting practices


	
	
	
	

	Anorexia nervosa and/or bulimia


	
	
	
	

	Physical activity levels


	
	
	
	

	Dental caries


	
	
	
	

	Sexually Transmitted Diseases


	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Adults and Older Adults 

Source and Date of Data: _______________________________________________

	Health Indicators
	Community
	State

	
	No.
	%
	No.
	%

	Obesity


	
	
	
	

	Cardiovascular Disease


	
	
	
	

	Hypertension


	
	
	
	

	Cancer

Screening for Breast Cancer
	
	
	
	

	Stroke


	
	
	
	

	Diabetes


	
	
	
	

	High Blood Cholesterol

Screening
	
	
	
	

	Iron Deficiency Anemia


	
	
	
	

	AIDS

Rate – per 100,000
	
	
	
	

	High percentage of calories from fat


	
	
	
	

	Fruit and vegetable daily intake

Eat at least 5 servings/day


	
	
	
	

	Physical activity levels


	
	
	
	

	Alcohol


	
	
	
	

	Cigarette Smoking


	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	
	


Friendsville, USA

Small Group Work

Instructions
You have 45 minutes to work on this activity.

1. Please read the profile/data set that describes “Friendsville,” a suburban community in Georgia.

2. Work as a group at your tables to answer the following questions.  Record your findings on this sheet and prepare a summary on newsprint to share with the large group. 

What is really striking about the demographic data? 



Look at each age grouping.  What are some of the prominent or potential issues for each group based on your review of the demographic and health data? 

Health Status

Preconceptional Women & Preconceptional Adolescents


Pregnant Women & Pregnant Adolescents

Infants and Preschool Children

School-Age Children & Adolescents

Adults & Older Adults

What are some of the significant gaps in data for Friendsville?  

Friendsville data sheets

Conduct a Media Survey

One method of gathering information on perceived needs is to study mass media coverage of an issue over a selected period of time.  The size and scope of a media survey may vary according to available resources.  Information about media coverage can be obtained by:

· Reviewing periodicals at your local library;

· Contacting librarians at local newspapers, radio stations, and television stations;

· Contacting librarians at national newspapers, radio stations, television networks, and magazines or visiting their web sites;

· Reviewing publications produced by non-profit advocacy organizations; and

· Contacting or surveying local and national organizations that may track media coverage of these issues.

Identify media to be studied

	Television
· Public Service Announcements (PSAs)

· Paid Ads

· News Stories

· Public Affairs Programs

· Talk Shows

· News Magazine Programs

· Special Programs

· Community Calendars

· Community Opinion Programs

· Management Editorials

Radio
· PSAs

· Paid Ads

· News Stories

· Public Affairs Program

· Talk Shows

· Packaged Series

· Community Calendar

· Management Editorials

Newspaper

· Paid Ads

· News Stories

· Editorials

· Letters to the Editor

· Feature Columns
	Newsletters

· Stories

· Paid Ads

· Columns

Print Materials

· Books

· Fliers

· Posters

· Brochures/Booklets

Community Events

· Health Events

· Charitable/Fundraising Events

· Civic Events

· Community Organization Meetings

· School Events

Ads or Announcements Posted in Public Places

· Public Transportation

· Billboards

· Park Benches

· Other ____________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________




Use the media chart on the next page to track your findings.

Community Opinion Survey Tips

The purpose of the community opinion survey is to find out what the community perceives to be its main health problems, needs, and assets.  The sample survey on the next two pages can help you gather information on health problems from the community’s perspective.  You may want to include additional questions, but only ask questions that will give you the information you need.

Who to survey

Include people who are listed in the categories on the bottom of page 50.  Everyone in the community should fit into one of these categories.  

How many to survey

Generally, it is not possible to survey everyone in your community.  Instead, try to ensure that your survey sample is representative of the whole community.

Survey a representative sample of your community
Randomly select a specific number of people to survey from each category.  Use common sense.

Outline the strategy
Ideally, this survey is conducted person-to-person (i.e., over the phone or in person).  If you mail the survey, you may have to adapt some of the questions in the sample survey.  Determine how you will conduct this survey.  Factors such as budget and time may affect this decision.

· By telephone

· By mail

· By visiting public places

· A combination of the above

Record information on respondents
Use page 50 to record a description of the respondent.  If you need to analyze the data you gather based on each of the demographic factors listed, attach the “Description of the Respondent” form to each survey.  Otherwise, keep respondent descriptions separate from the survey and gather the information only to ensure a representative sampling of your community.

Chart your results
Summarize and chart your results on the “Summary of Perceptions and Opinions,” page 51.  If your survey generates very few responses that are related to your area of focus, it may indicate a lack of general awareness about your issue, and you may want to consider lunching an education campaign aimed at elevating such awareness.

Community Opinion Survey

Respondent’s Name _________________________________Phone No. _______________

1) What do you think are the main health problems in our community?

2) Which one of these problems do you consider to be the most important one in our community?

3) In your opinion, what related factors contribute to these health problems?

4) What do you think should be done to address this problem?

5) What barriers, if any, do you see to implementing a project to prevent this problem in our community?  (If none, go to question #7)

6) How would you suggest overcoming these barriers?

7) What role could you play to help us implement this project in our community?  Suggestions: serve on a coalition, serve on a task force or committee, do public endorsement/testimonial, appoint a person to work on the project, donate resources.

8) Could you suggest other organizations/groups in our community that could be involved with this project?

9) Who in our community needs to be involved with this project to make it successful?

10) Are there any other suggestions or ideas that you can give me as we prepare to get this project started?

Thank you for your time and support.  May I get in touch with you again to let you know how the project is progressing and to discuss how you can best help ensure it’s success?

· Yes

· No

Description of Respondent

Respondent’s name: ________________________________ Date: __________

Gather the following information on each respondent.  This data can be used to ensure that you have surveyed a representative sample of your community.  The data can also be used to analyze survey results, if necessary.

A)
Gender:
( Female

( Male

B)
Race:

( White

( Black

( Hispanic




(American Indian or Alaska Native




( Asian or Pacific Islander


( Other

C)
Age:

( <18

( 18-24
( 25-44
( 45-64
( 65+

D)
How long has respondent been a member of the community?
( <3 years
(3-9 years
( 10+ years

E)
Geographical area:
( urban
( rural
( suburban


Respondent’s Neighborhood: _______________________________________
F)
Affiliation that resulted in respondent being selected.  Choose only one.


( At-large Community member



(men, women, elderly, teens, etc.)


( Community Leader



(aldermen, clergy, organization leaders, newspaper editors, etc.)


( Agencies



(extension, aging, food stamps, united way, red cross, etc.)


( School



(teachers, administrators, school board members, food service personnel, etc.)


( Health Professional



(nutritionists, nurses, physicians, dentist, psychologists, social workers, etc) 


( Business



(industry, professional services, financial, retail, etc.)


( Other  

Summary of Perceptions and Opinions

Summarize your findings about the perceptions and opinions of your community.  Consider what you discovered from the results of your media survey, focus groups, and opinion survey.  Remember this is a report on what the community thinks are the health problems and assets.  Your personal opinion should not influence this summary.

Top three to five perceived health problems and/or assets

Friendsville’s Perceived Needs Worksheet

You have 15 minutes to work on this activity.

1. As a group at your table, review the Friendsville Perceived Needs Summary on the next page.  


2. Now look at your summary of Friendsville demographic and health data and discuss the following questions: 


· How would you prioritize the community issues considering both the available perceived needs information and the demographic and health data? 

· What are some of the barriers to working on “your” program area? 

· What other perceived needs data might be necessary/useful to complete this community assessment? 

Friendsville’s Perceived Needs Summary

Methods for collecting perceived needs data:

A week long media survey was completed in October 2001.  

· Reviewed daily, local newspaper (reaches 47% of population).

· Documented all health-related reports, commercials or programming content for random two hour blocks (9-11 am, 1-3 pm, 8-10 pm on Saturday, Monday and Tuesday) for 2 local affiliates and 1 local cable television station, and same timeframe for 2 local radio stations (1 with teen target market and 1 for adult market). 

10 surveys were completed by community leaders and representatives from local organizations in November/December 2001.


120 random resident intercept surveys (4 questions) were completed at local 3 local grocery stores (three different neighborhoods) in November 2001. 

· 64 women between ages of 18-72

· 47 women parents of children aged 2 months-18 years

· 17 reported they were grandparents

· 43 women reported full or part time employment

· 28 women reported working full-time employment

· 56 men between ages of 18-80

· 45 men were parents of children aged 2 moths-18 years

· 12 reported they were grandparents

· 51 men reported full or part time employment

· 12 reported part time employment


Based on results of surveys above, focus groups are planned for May/June 2002.


Friendsville, USA Perceived Needs:

Based on data collected to date, the following issues were most frequently identified as community concerns.   These are listed in order of the frequency of response. 

Quality, availability and cost of daycare. (52 responses, two local newspaper articles)


Housing for the elderly versus nursing homes. (42 responses, one local talk radio interview, one local TV news interview/report with developer of elderly housing and local Director for Council on Aging)


Fear of groundwater contamination from a closed US military base.  The extent of contamination is not known, but the EPA and state and local officials are involved in assessing risk of drinking water contamination.  (40 responses, local newspaper, radio and TV news coverage of local government officials meeting with EPA representatives) 


Concern that economy will turn bad and the two manufacturers in town will lay off large numbers of workers.  (30 responses, one article in local paper, one local TV news report)


Decreasing number of physicians in area. (28 responses)


Increasing number of pregnant high school students. (24 responses, one article in local paper) 

Over last several years, adults seem heavier and more adults seem to have diabetes. (20 responses, one report on national TV evening news report)


Poor quality of food in schools.  Serve pizza and soda everyday in high school. (17 responses) 


Fear of violence in middle and high schools. (12 responses, 1 TV news report)


Chicken processing plant on outskirts of town is health hazard for anyone living near it. (7 responses) 


Agenda

Day 2, March 13, 2002
Community Services, Resources, and Environment

8:30-9:45

Mini presentation

Assessing Friendsville’s environment

BREAK








9:45-10:00

Prioritizing Health Problems





10:00-10:45

Overview on criteria for prioritizing health problems

Prioritizing Friendsville's health problems

Writing Measurable Objectives




10:45-11:30

Mini presentation

Small group activity

LUNCH








11:30-12:30

Review Your Community Data




12:30-2:00

Team work

BREAK








2:00-2:30

Plan to Fill Gaps in Your Community Data


2:30-3:30
Team Work

Debrief








3:30-4:00

Community Resources, Services, and Environment

This step in conducting a community assessment requires a review of other agencies.  There are three questions to ask about these agencies.

· What level of interaction do we have with them?

· What programs/services do they offer related to our focus?

· How do they impact the environment that affects our focus?

What level of interaction do we have with them?
Communicate – talk about programs/services

Plan  - decide together on future programs/services

Implement – work together to offer programs/services

What programs/services do they offer related to our focus?
Clinical care – treatment, counseling

Assistance – referrals, cash, food

Education – materials, classes

Assessment – community assessment information and data

How do they impact the environment that affects our focus?
Policies – rules that encourage or discourage healthy behaviors

Practices – social norms that affect behaviors

Infrastructure – physical surroundings that affect behaviors

Community Resources, Services, and Environment Checklist

	Community Agency
	What Level of Interaction Do We Have with Them?

(communicate, plan, implement)
	What Programs/services Do They Offer Related to Our Focus?
	How Do They Impact the Environment Related to Our Focus?

(policies, practices, & infrastructure)

	Local Government
	
	
	

	Mayor, town or city council
	
	
	

	County commissioners
	
	
	

	Other elected officials
	
	
	

	Other elected officials
	
	
	

	Board of health
	
	
	

	Local school board/superintendent
	
	
	

	Local school board/superintendent
	
	
	

	Town planner
	
	
	

	Conservation commission
	
	
	

	Public works
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Mass Media
	
	
	

	Newspaper(s)
	
	
	

	Radio station(s)
	
	
	

	Television station(s) 
	
	
	

	Outdoor Advertising (billboards, buildings)
	
	
	

	Other 
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Health Care
	
	
	

	Assisted Living 
	
	
	

	Community Health Center
	
	
	

	Health Planning Committee
	
	
	

	Hospices
	
	
	

	Hospitals
	
	
	

	Hospital Outpatient Clinics
	
	
	

	Home Health Agencies
	
	
	

	Intermediate Care/ Rehabilitation 
	
	
	

	Managed Care Organization (HMO)
	
	
	

	Medicare Program
	
	
	

	Nursing Homes
	
	
	

	Private Medical Clinics
	
	
	

	Public Health Department
	
	
	

	Specialty Clinics 
	
	
	

	Weight Management Programs
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Educational 

Programs or Settings
	
	
	

	Athletic clubs: private, corporate, YWCA, YMCA, etc.
	
	
	

	Elementary Schools
	
	
	

	After School Childcare Programs (public & private)
	
	
	

	Extension/EFNEP
	
	
	

	Head Start
	
	
	

	Boy Scouts/Girl Scouts
	
	
	

	4-H
	
	
	

	Middle and High School
	
	
	

	Teen Centers
	
	
	

	Universities, community colleges
	
	
	

	Worksites offering Wellness/Health Programming
	
	
	

	Commercial Businesses w/Recreational Services 
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Professional, Volunteer, Non-Profit Organizations 
	
	
	

	American Cancer Society 
	
	
	

	American Heart Association 
	
	
	

	American Red Cross 
	
	
	

	Council on Aging
	
	
	

	Healthy Mothers, Healthy Babies
	
	
	

	March of Dimes 
	
	
	

	Local Coalitions
	
	
	

	Parent Teacher Associations
	
	
	

	United Way
	
	
	

	Visiting Nurses Association
	
	
	

	Community Service Organizations - Associations
	
	
	

	Addiction Prevention and Recovery Groups
	
	
	

	Advisory Community Support Groups
	
	
	

	Block Clubs
	
	
	

	Anti Crime Groups
	
	
	

	Business Organizations
	
	
	

	Charitable Groups and Drives
	
	
	

	Elderly Groups
	
	
	

	Hobby and Collectors Groups
	
	
	

	Mentoring Groups
	
	
	

	Neighborhood Improvement Groups
	
	
	

	Political Organizations
	
	
	

	Recreation Groups
	
	
	

	Religious Groups
	
	
	

	Unions
	
	
	

	Veteran’s Groups
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Major Businesses in Community
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	Food and Nutrition Resources
	
	
	

	Adult Day Care
	
	
	

	Adult Day Health Care
	
	
	

	Child & Adult Care Food Programs (CACFP)
	
	
	

	Child Care Centers
	
	
	

	Commodity Foods (TEFAP)
	
	
	

	Congregate Meals
	
	
	

	Convenience Stores
	
	
	

	Convenience Stores
	
	
	

	Grocery Stores
	
	
	

	Grocery Stores
	
	
	

	Grocery Stores
	
	
	

	Farmer’s Markets
	
	
	

	Food Banks
	
	
	

	Child Nutrition Programs
	
	
	

	School Breakfast
	
	
	

	School Lunch
	
	
	

	Summer Feeding Program
	
	
	

	Food Coops
	
	
	

	Food Stamps
	
	
	

	Home-Delivered Meals
	
	
	

	Homeless Shelters
	
	
	

	Neighborhood Food Stores
	
	
	

	Restaurants
	
	
	

	Soup Kitchens
	
	
	

	Supermarkets (large or chain)
	
	
	

	WIC
	
	
	

	Other 
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	

	Other
	
	
	


What’s Happening in Friendsville?

Small Group Work

Instructions
You have 30 minutes to work on this activity.

1. Review the 2-page list of Friendsville’s community services and community environment as related to nutrition and physical activity.

2. List your table’s priorities after examining each category of information.

	Health Data
	Perceived Needs Information
	Community Services and Environment Information

	
	
	


3. How did your priorities change?

4. How was the Community Services and Environment information helpful? 

5. What additional Community Services and Environment information could you collect that would be helpful?

What’s Happening in Friendsville?

This is a brief list of some of the community services available in Friendsville and some information on Friendsville's environment as related to nutrition and physical activity.

Existing Nutrition and Physical Activity Programs/Services

· The local primary care physician’s organization has a nutrition and fitness subdivision that offers nutrition and fitness programs for a fee.

· The largest hospital in Friendsville, which also serves a multi-county area, is looking to market prevention services to the multi-county area it serves.

· The YMCA has strong youth activity programs.

· There are several Jenny Craig and Weight Watchers clinics throughout Friendsville.

· An independent gym/fitness center that opened 9 months ago just closed due to low revenue.

Business

· The top 10 employers (in size) all have on-site cafeterias.

· The businesses in the industrial park are contracting with the local family physician’s office to provide all their prevention and medical services.

· There is a new director for the Friendsville Main Street program (a downtown revitalization program).

· Friendsville has one shopping center and is planning a new one that will have 2 levels.

Preschools and Early Childhood Care

· Three of the five large child-care facilities have their meals and snacks catered by the local school district, and the other two centers have their meals and snacks catered by the largest regional hospital.

· The state has allocated 50% of its tobacco settlement funds for local programs that help ensure children enter school ready to learn.

Schools

· There is good support from the community and a high percentage of the students participate in a broad range of after-school sports.

· The school district just renewed a 5-year contract with Coca-Cola.

· All the schools have a PTA, but there is great variability as to how active they are.

Faith-based Organizations

· The area churches hold/organize most of the TOPS (take off pounds sensibly) groups.  These are support groups for people trying to lose weight and may include counselors and educational speakers.

· Blood pressure checks offered at least one Sunday a month are typical in most churches.

Neighborhoods

· The neighborhood associations are very strong in the new development areas.

· There is a city ordinance that requires a resident to have their sidewalks redone if there is a ¾ inch height difference from one slab to the next or from one brick to the next.

Roadways and Parks

· The city just finished 5 miles of new street through the new commercial part of town.  There are no bike lanes and there are no sidewalks.  The city plans to do 15 more miles over the next 5 years.

· Friendsville has more square feet of public land per person than any other city in the state.  And, the parks have award-winning landscape every year.

Service Clubs

· Rotary, Lions, Kiwanis, etc. meet at least monthly and have a hot noon meal with their meeting.

All the service clubs in town have at least one annual fundraiser.

Prioritizing Health Problems

Note-taking Page
Criteria for Prioritizing Health Problems

a. Perceptions and opinions

b. Number of at-risk persons

c. Economic burden to the community

d. Preventability

e. Effectiveness of existing community interventions

f. Supportive environment

Prioritizing Health Problems

Example:  Teen Pregnancy
a. perceptions and opinions

· 10 articles in the past two month; 3-day feature series

· 4 focus groups


parents – problem

boys 6-12 years – no problem

girls 6-12 years – no problem

other adults - problem

· 1 in 3 people interviewed on the street concerned

b. number of at-risk persons

· 1999 teen birth rate was 50 (50 births/1,000 females age 15-17 years); actual number of births to single teens was 107 

· 1998 teen birth rate was 40

c. economic burden to the community

· children of teenage mothers have lower birth weights which is associated with higher medical costs 

· teen mothers are more likely to end up on welfare (nearly 80 percent of unmarried teen mothers end up on welfare)

d. preventability

· is preventable with comprehensive prevention programs

e. effectiveness of intervention

· existing community programs are all in schools
f. supportive environment

· young girls believe that having a baby will make their life better

· local school board recently eliminated family life studies course

Prioritizing Health Problems Worksheet

This worksheet can be used to identify priorities among the health problems discovered in the community assessment.  Reproduce this form for each problem identified.  This form is intended to serve as a guide in determining priorities.

Health Problem: __________________________________________________

In the table below, rate the importance of the problem with the specific criteria, using estimates.  These estimates are based on your knowledge of the community and the health data obtained in your community assessment process.

	
	Score

	a. Perceptions and opinions

· If the community perceives this problem as serious, enter a 3.

· If the community perceives this problem as moderate but not requiring immediate action, enter a 2.

· If the community perceives this problem to be minor or feels no sense of urgency in addressing it, enter a 1.


	

	b. Number of at-risk persons actually affected by the problem

· If this is one of the most prevalent problems in the age group, enter a 3.

· If the problem is less prevalent in the specific age group, but is still a problem, enter a 2.

· If relatively few people are affected, enter a 1.


	

	c. Economic burden to the community (lost productivity, high health care costs, etc.)

· If the economic burden of this problem is high, enter a 3.

· If the economic burden of this problem is moderate, enter a 2.

· If the economic burden of this problem is relatively low, enter a 1.


	

	d. Preventability (effective means to prevent the problem)

· If the problem can be prevented from occurring, enter a 3.

· If the problem cannot be prevented but can be detected early and stopped, enter a 2.

· If the problem cannot be prevented and cannot be detected before it becomes a problem, enter a 1.


	

	e. Effectiveness of existing community interventions (the more effective the intervention available, the lower the score)

· If no effective intervention is available, enter a 3.

· If somewhat effective interventions are available, enter a 2.

· If effective, well attended interventions are available for the community, enter a 1.


	

	f. Supportive environment (the more supportive, the lower the score)

· If the environment discourages healthy behaviors, enter a 3.

· If the environment is somewhat supportive of healthy behaviors, enter a 2.

· If the environment encourages healthy behaviors, enter a 1.


	

	TOTAL SCORE
	


Make a list of the health problems with their scores.  Rank the problems, assigning 1 to the problem with the highest score. 

Prioritizing Friendsville’s Health Problems

Instructions
You have 15 minutes for this activity.

1. Complete a “Prioritizing Friendsville’s Health Problems Worksheet” for the health problem your group is assigned. 

2. Report the score to the large group. 

Prioritizing Friendsville’s Health Problems Worksheet

This worksheet can be used to identify priorities among the health problems discovered in the community assessment.  Reproduce this form for each problem identified.  This form is intended to serve as a guide in determining priorities.

Health Problem: __________________________________________________

In the table below, rate the importance of the problem with the specific criteria, using estimates.  These estimates are based on your knowledge of the community and the health data obtained in your community assessment process.

	
	Score

	a. Perceptions and opinions

· If the community perceives this problem as serious, enter a 3.

· If the community perceives this problem as moderate but not requiring immediate action, enter a 2.

· If the community perceives this problem to be minor or feels no sense of urgency in addressing it, enter a 1.


	

	b. Number of at-risk persons actually affected by the problem

· If this is one of the most prevalent problems in the age group, enter a 3.

· If the problem is less prevalent in the specific age group, but is still a problem, enter a 2.

· If relatively few people are affected, enter a 1.


	

	c. Economic burden to the community (lost productivity, high health care costs, etc.)

· If the economic burden of this problem is high, enter a 3.

· If the economic burden of this problem is moderate, enter a 2.

· If the economic burden of this problem is relatively low, enter a 1.


	

	d. Preventability (effective means to prevent the problem)

· If the problem can be prevented from occurring, enter a 3.

· If the problem cannot be prevented but can be detected early and stopped, enter a 2.

· If the problem cannot be prevented and cannot be detected before it becomes a problem, enter a 1.


	

	e. Effectiveness of existing community interventions (the more effective the intervention available, the lower the score)

· If no effective intervention is available, enter a 3.

· If somewhat effective interventions are available, enter a 2.

· If effective, well attended interventions are available for the community, enter a 1.


	

	f. Supportive environment (the more supportive, the lower the score)

· If the environment discourages healthy behaviors, enter a 3.

· If the environment is somewhat supportive of healthy behaviors, enter a 2.

· If the environment encourages healthy behaviors, enter a 1.


	

	TOTAL SCORE
	


Make a list of the health problems with their scores.  Rank the problems, assigning 1 to the problem with the highest score. 

Determining Goals

Goals: 

· Guide aspirations or desired changes for the future.
· Give a general direction for the focus of a plan.
· Are based on health priorities in your community.
· Usually answer the question – What is the ultimate end to improving this problem? 


Matching your plan’s goals to the goals of your organization and/or local, state and national goals shows consistency and may help your plan get funded and/or support from colleagues, partners and leadership. 

Remember that several goals may be relevant to a health priority.


EXAMPLES: 

Improve the health of all __________ residents.   


Improve the health and well-being of adolescent males living in ___________.


Enhance the lives of infants and children in  ____________ through improved nutritional status.

Writing Program Objectives

Outcome objectives


These aim for changes in the population in:

· attitude

· behavior


· knowledge

· health status




Health outcome:  improved health (reduced infant mortality)

Intermediate:  improvement that will lead to desired health outcome (increase breastfeeding rates)

Process objectives

These address activities, which are carried out by professionals and activities related to the intervention. (increasing the number of contacts made by a breastfeeding counselor)

Structure objectives

These set targets for things like:

	· budget
	· equipment

	· staff
	· space

	· facilities
	· records


These types of objectives are hierarchical in that the structural objectives make possible the processes that lead to the successful health outcomes that address the overall goals!  

Example:

Health Outcome: To reduce the rate of adolescent overweight and obesity by 2% in county X by 2006.  (Baseline 18.5 – 1999 state health statistics)

Intermediate: All junior and senior high school students in county X will participate in daily physical activity for at least 30 minutes during the school day. (Currently 60% of junior and high school students participate in 30 minutes of physical activity 3 times a week.)

Process: By September 2003, all junior (2) and senior (2) high schools in county X will adopt and implement daily physical activity standards that include a variety of physical activity options for all students.  

Structure: Given a budget of $35,000, our agency will collaborate with the county school board, school administration, school health and physical activity coordinators, teachers, parents and students to plan and implement policies and programming.  

Writing & Evaluating Objectives
SMART+C Formula 

To write/evaluate written objectives, apply the SMART+C formula:

Specific:  
Are they specific?  What is to be achieved?  Who is expected to change, by how much and by when?

Measurable:  
Can they be collected, detected, or obtained from records?  Is there a baseline indicator?

Achievable:  
Can they really be met?  Are they realistic?

Relevant:  
Are they relevant to the mission or vision of your group?  Do they show what the group hopes to accomplish and why?

Times/timely:  
Do they include a timeline by which they will be achieved?

Challenging:  
Do they stretch the group and aim on significant improvement of importance to the community?

Source: Community Tool Box, Chapter 6, Section 3: Creating Objectives, Contributed by Jenette Nagy and Stephen B. Fawcett, Edited by Bill Berkowitz and Jerry Schultz.

Writing Measurable Outcome Objectives

Small Group Work

Instructions

You have 20 minutes for this activity.

Using the priority issue from your Friendsville activity, write objectives related to that issue.  



Health Outcome Objective:

Intermediate Outcome Objective:

Process Objective:  

Structure Objective:

Use the SMART+C formula, review, evaluate and revise your objectives.  
Plan to Collect More Demographic Data 
	What to Collect
	How to Collect
	Who Can Help
	When to Collect 

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


Plan to Collect More Health Data 
	What to Collect
	How to Collect
	Who Can Help
	When to Collect 

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


Plan to Collect More Perceptions and Opinions Information
	What to Collect
	How to Collect
	Who Can Help
	When to Collect 

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


Plan to Collect More Community Services, Resources, & Environment Information 

	What to Collect
	How to Collect
	Who Can Help
	When to Collect 

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	

	
	
	
	


Evaluation

Developing Population-Based Services 
Session #1

1. List the five steps of the planning process for developing population-based services.

2. Describe the four components of a community health assessment.

3. Describe the gaps in your community assessment information including demographic and health data, community perceptions and opinions, and community resources, services, and environment information.

4. Circle the number that best represents your reaction to the program.

a. I feel that I will be able to use what I have learned.
(never) 1
2
3
4
5  (often)


b. The training facilities met my needs.
(never) 1
2
3
4
5  (often)


c. The program covered the promised objectives.
(never) 1
2
3
4
5  (often)


5. What did you find most useful in the program? 



6. What did you find least useful in the program? 



7. Is there anything that could be improved? 



8. What would you like to focus on during Session #2 in April 2002? 




Questions and Technical Assistance

If you have questions or would like clarification on any aspects of this training, please call or email one (or both) of us.  We would be happy to assist you!

Susanne Gregory

Phone: 804/282-1355

Email: susannegregory@yahoo.com
Karen Probert

Phone: 785/392-2044

Email: ochpc@nckcn.com 
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